
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 6 April 2018 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Anna Poole (Tel. 0116 305 2583) 

Email: anna.poole@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. D. Slater CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. I. E. G. Bentley CC 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 

Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Dr. P. Bremner CC 

 

Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
Mr. A. E. Pearson CC 
Mr J. Poland CC 
 

 
Please note: this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s web site at http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk 
– Notices will be on display at the meeting explaining the arrangements. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   
    

1.  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2018.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 
 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/public-involvement/watch-council-meetings-online


 
 
 
 

 

6.  
  

Declarations of the Party Whip in accordance 
with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 
16.  
 

 
 

 

7.  
  

Presentation of Petitions under Standing Order 
36.  
 

 
 

 

8.  
  

Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways 
Capital Programme and Highways and 
Transportation Work Programme.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Transport 
 

(Pages 11 - 42) 

9.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to take place on 
Thursday 31 May 2018 at 2pm. 
 
 

 

10.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 

QUESTIONING BY MEMBERS OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
Members serving on Overview and Scrutiny have a key role in providing constructive yet robust 
challenge to proposals put forward by the Cabinet and Officers. One of the most important skills is the 
ability to extract information by means of questions so that it can help inform comments and 
recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny bodies. 
 
Members clearly cannot be expected to be experts in every topic under scrutiny and nor is there an 
expectation that they so be. Asking questions of ‘experts’ can be difficult and intimidating but often 
posing questions from a lay perspective would allow members to obtain a better perspective and 
understanding of the issue at hand. 
 
Set out below are some key questions members may consider asking when considering reports on 
particular issues. The list of questions is not intended as a comprehensive list but as a general guide. 
Depending on the issue under consideration there may be specific questions members may wish to 
ask.  
 
Key Questions: 
 

 Why are we doing this? 

 Why do we have to offer this service? 

 How does this fit in with the Council’s priorities? 

 Which of our key partners are involved? Do they share the objectives and is the service to be 
joined up? 

 Who is providing this service and why have we chosen this approach? What other options were 
considered and why were these discarded? 

 Who has been consulted and what has the response been? How, if at all, have their views been 
taken into account in this proposal? 

 
If it is a new service: 
 

 Who are the main beneficiaries of the service? (could be a particular group or an area) 

 What difference will providing this service make to them – What will be different and how will we 
know if we have succeeded? 

 How much will it cost and how is it to be funded? 

 What are the risks to the successful delivery of the service? 
 
If it is a reduction in an existing service: 
 

 Which groups are affected? Is the impact greater on any particular group and, if so, which group 
and what plans do you have to help mitigate the impact? 

 When are the proposals to be implemented and do you have any transitional arrangements for 
those who will no longer receive the service? 

 What savings do you expect to generate and what was expected in the budget? Are there any 
redundancies? 

 What are the risks of not delivering as intended? If this happens, what contingency measures have 
you in place?  

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held at County Hall, Glenfield on Thursday, 1 March 2018.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. D. Slater CC (in the Chair) 
 

Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 
Mr. G. A. Boulter CC 
Dr. P. Bremner CC 
Mr. J. G. Coxon CC 
 

Mr. Max Hunt CC 
Mr. A. E. Pearson CC 
Mr J. Poland CC 
 

 
 
In attendance. 
 
Mr. B. Pain CC, Cabinet Lead Member for Environment and Transport. 
Mrs. C. M. Radford CC, Cabinet Support Member for Environment and Transport.  
Mrs. B. Seaton CC, Chairman Elect, Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Minute 65 refers).  
Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC, Labour Spokesperson, Children and Families Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Minute 65 refers). 
Mrs. D. Taylor CC, Deputy Chairman Elect, Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Minute 65 refers).  
 

58. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2018 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

59. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

60. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

61. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

62. Declarations of Interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 

5 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

Mr Pain declared a Personal Interest in relation to Item 8 ‘Mainstream and Special 
Educational Needs Home to School Transport Policy’ as members of his family run a taxi 
company.  
 

63. Declarations of the Party Whip.  
 
There were no declarations of the party whip. 
 

64. Presentation of Petition: Street Lighting to be Returned to All-Night Operations In 
Broughton Astley.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport which 
responded to the petition containing 502 signatures which had been received on 11 
January 2018. A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The terms of the petition are:  
 
“Previously the council made a decision to turn off certain street lights after 12/1am in the 
Broughton Astley area.  This is troubling as many now feel unsafe walking on the streets 
at this time.  Particularly as certain public houses in the area don’t close until 1am.  
Switching said lights back on will allow people to feel safe being out of their homes and 
could help in creating a safer community.  Particularly as many people’s property (homes, 
vans, caravans, public houses) have been the target of burglaries, especially within the 
past few weeks.  Signing this petition will make it clear that as a community we want to 
create a safe environment to live in. 
 
We the people of Broughton Astley, who have signed the petition, ask Leicestershire 
County Council to turn the lights back on in our village, for all of the reasons listed in our 
petition. We would like every light on, if this isn't possible, every other light. Specifically in 
cul-de-sacs and other residential areas. 
 
It has become clear recently that the Oadby area rectified this decision after dealing with 
burglaries and antisocial behaviour.” 
 
 
A statement from the Lead Petitioner, Julie Harding, was tabled at the meeting as she 
had been unable to attend the meeting due to the poor weather. A copy of the statement 
is filed with these minutes.  
 
The Chairman read out a statement on behalf of Mr. Liquorish, the Local Member, who 
was unable to attend the meeting: 
 
“First and foremost I have looked at the names on the petition. I know that Broughton 
Astley is one of the largest villages in Europe, if not the largest, but to be World renowned 
and Countrywide renowned is quite remarkable on such a local issue of street lighting, so 
I will not pay too much attention to the names recorded. 
 
I did some time ago put my points of view over to Mrs Julie Harding. I told her that we 
have a very good relationship with the Local Police Team in Broughton Astley, and would 
have high regard to any comments they make around street lighting problems, if any. She 
is right in saying that the Council made a decision on part night lighting, but she fails to 
say that it was after consultation with the residents through the Parish Council in 
Broughton Astley, and through the media including a Newsletter (Broughton Matters) 

6



 
 

 

which is circulated to every household. She also makes the point about people coming 
out of Public Houses after midnight. I would think on that score, that any vulnerable 
person would make arrangements to be transported home safely at that time of night. I 
also pointed out that there are savings on energy costs, carbon emissions and light 
pollution. I explained to Julie that I represent nearby villages, namely Ashby 
Magna/Parva, Leire, and Frolsworth. All have elected to control their own street lighting 
and have their own lamp systems to cut down on light pollution and to blend in with the 
village scene.  
 
I have had no direct approaches to me about Street lighting timings apart from two 
people being against the petition.” 
 
Statements from two residents, who opposed the terms of the petition, were also tabled 
at the meeting. A copy of the statements is filed with these minutes.  
 
In response to questions, the following points were raised:- 
 
i) Leicestershire Police had been consulted following receipt of the petition, and had 

reported that there was no evidence of any increase in crime during the hours of 
darkness that could be directly attributed to part-night lighting in Broughton Astley;  

 
ii) In cases where, a causal link between part-night lighting and crime levels was 

evidenced by Leicestershire Police, then the switching back on of the lighting 
through the night for a defined temporary period would be considered; a review 
would be completed jointly with Leicestershire Police at the end of the trial period 
and decisions about future levels of street lighting would be made based on the 
evidence provided;   

 
iii) The newly installed LED street lighting gave the County Council more control over 

street lighting; a central management system enabled the street lighting to be 
dimmed; 

 
iv) The County Council’s policy on part-night lighting also took into account the 

environmental impact and savings generated. In this regard, Members noted that 
energy usage had been reduced from 26 million kilo watt hours (KWH) to 10.5 
million KWH across Leicestershire and carbon dioxide emissions had been reduced 
by 59%. 

 
RESOLVED:  

 
That the content of the petition be noted and that the recommendation of the Director not 
to accede to the request for all-night lighting be supported. 
 

65. Mainstream and Special Educational Needs Home to School Transport Policy.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport 
concerning proposals to revise the Special Educational Needs (SEN) Transport Policy 
and the Mainstream Home to School Transport Policy. A copy of the report marked 
‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
A statement was received from Dr Eynon CC and from Annie Bannister, a parent of a 
child affected by the proposals. A copy of these statements is filed with these minutes. 
 

7



 
 

 

Mrs Seaton, Mrs Taylor and Mr Sheahan, the Chairman Elect, Deputy Chairman Elect 
and Labour Spokesperson on the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee attended by invitation for this item. 
 
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised:- 
 
i)   The proposals related to discretionary transport provision for children with SEN or 

disabilities under the age of 5 years, for young people with SEN aged 16 to 18 and 
other young people aged 16+; the proposals would generate a saving of up to 
£800,000, against an initial savings target of £1million; 

 
ii) In response to the statement by Dr. Eynon CC tabled at the meeting, the 

Committee was informed that analysis of the consultation results had not been 
analysed by the Department but by the Business Intelligence Unit in the Chief 
Executive’s Department. The analysis was consistent with industry norms and the 
results highlighted in the report were those that were deemed statistically significant 
for the relevant questions. It was acknowledged that the proposals were unpopular. 

 
iii) Leicestershire Equalities Challenge Group had been consulted and had been 

particularly helpful in assisting the development of proposals to mitigate the impact 
on people; 

 
iv) Regarding Personal Transport Budgets (PTB), Members were informed that 

measures would be developed to help support families in moving to a new system. 
This would include, for example, working with schools to identify families who could 
share home to school transport, potentially arranged by the school and funded 
through each family’s PTB. Mitigation measures would be put in place to help 
address potential drop-out rates; 

 
v) Exception arrangements would be put in place to address and support families for 

whom a PTB was unworkable. Exceptions would be considered on a case by case 
basis by staff well experienced in dealing with PTBs as well as mainstream and 
SEN home to school transport. Criteria for an exception could not be set out as 
each case was individual. A two-stage appeals process would be in place; the first 
stage would be dealt with by staff who were well-versed in the area of work, 
although had not dealt with the case previously; and the second stage would be 
handled by an independent panel. The committee was informed that, should 
significant issues arise with the operation of the PTB, the system could be reviewed; 

 
vi) Mechanisms would be put in place to monitor use of PTBs to identify early on any 

issues being experienced by individual families. Payments would be made monthly 
in advance to help support families with budgeting; 

 
vii) Where a student was deemed likely of entering into care as a result of transport 

pressures which had led to poor attendance at school, a robust escalation process 
would be in place. This would be developed, in conjunction with schools and the 
SEN service, should the proposals be approved by the Cabinet at its meeting on 9 
March 2018; 

 
viii) Members were informed that officers had worked closely with Children and Family 

Services to identify mitigation measures to minimise any potential effect on the 
social care budget, should children be unable to attend school due to financial 
pressures; 

8



 
 

 

 
ix) There were numerous hackney cabs available across the county that were 

wheelchair accessible and availability was not considered an issue at this stage. 
The arrangements would be reviewed should issues arise; 

 
x) Where children had been provided with medical escorts, discussions would take 

place with parents and carers to understand the transport arrangements made 
when such children were not at school. The PTB would consider the particular 
needs of the child; 

 
xi) ‘Low income families’ were defined as those who were in receipt of the maximum 

Working Families Tax Credit or eligible for free school meals; 
 
xii) Members also recognised that changes had been made to the proposals in 

response to the consultation findings; the consultation had been beneficial in 
understanding the impacts of those initial proposals. 

 
The majority of members recognised that difficult decisions needed to be made in order 
to deliver services with reduced funding. A number of members commented that the 
proposals now presented would no doubt cause some difficulty for families but given the 
budgetary pressures on the Council and that these services were non-statutory, in the 
circumstances, they were the best that could be achieved and therefore supported the 
proposals. 
 
Messrs Boulter, Hunt, Bill (and Mr Sheahan) were of the view that the proposals would 
impact adversely on some of the most vulnerable in society and as such asked that it be 
recorded that they were not in support of the proposals. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the Cabinet be advised of the views now expressed by the Committee on the 
revised Special Educational Needs Transport Policy and the revised Mainstream Home 
to School Transport Policy.   
 

66. Performance Report Quarter 3 2017/18.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport which 
provided an update on departmental performance at the end of quarter 3 of 2017/18. A 
copy of the report marked “Agenda Item 9” is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were raised: 
 
i) It was an ambition of the County Council to increase the rate of recycling across all 

Council buildings and sites. The Committee was informed that this was more 
challenging in community-based buildings; officers had visited all sites external to 
County Hall to discuss recycling rates and methods. The revised Environment 
Strategy, which would include more realistic targets for recycling rates across the 
Council, would be brought to the Committee for consideration in the spring of 2018; 

 
ii) Results for the National Highways and Transport Survey regarding the overall public 

satisfaction with the condition of roads had recently been issued. The results for 
Leicestershire showed an overall 39.5% satisfaction rate, which placed the Council 
as one of the best performing among its statistical neighbours;  

9



 
 

 

 
iii) Bus patronage had continued to decline, which was in line with the national trend.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the update on Departmental performance at the end of Quarter 3 of 2017/18 be 
noted. 
 

67. Road Casualty Reduction in Leicestershire.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Environment and Transport which 
provided an update on road casualty statistics and Leicestershire‘s approach to casualty 
reduction, and reviewed the suitability of the casualty reduction targets. A copy of the 
report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ is filed with these minutes.  
 
Arising from discussion, the following points were made:  
 
i) A national system was in place to record the level of killed, seriously or slightly 

injured casualties; the data was collated by Leicestershire Police;  
 
ii) There was no evidence to suggest that the level of road casualties had increased as 

the population aged; the County Council delivered training courses which equipped 
older drivers for the modern driving conditions;  

 
iii) Concern had been raised nationally regarding the policy change related to the 

reporting of collisions that had been implemented by the Police. Officers would 
discuss the impact of the change to reporting policy on the accuracy of the road 
casualty data with the Road Safety Partnership. The Department for Transport had 
recently begun a consultation on the reporting of accidents.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the report and the update provided on the following be noted:-  
 
• reported road casualty statistics; 
• Leicestershire’s approach to casualty reduction; and 
• the suitability of the casualty reduction targets. 
 

68. Date of next meeting.  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on Friday 6 April 2018 
at 2pm. 
 
 

 

 

 
2.00  - 3.40 pm CHAIRMAN 
01 March 2018 

 

10



 
 

 
 

CABINET – 10TH APRIL 2018 
 

ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT 2018/19 HIGHWAYS CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME AND HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION WORK 

PROGRAMME 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND TRANSPORT 
 

PART A 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the Environment and Transport 

2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work 
Programme, both of which are appended to this report. 

 
Recommendations 
 
2. It is recommended that: 

 
(a) The Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and 

the Highways and Transportation Work Programme, attached as Appendix A 
and B to this report, be approved; 

 
(b) The Director of Environment and Transport following consultation with the 

Cabinet Lead Member and the Director of Corporate Resources,  be 
authorised to make such minor amendments to the 2018/19 Highways 
Capital Programme and  Highways and Transportation Work Programme as 
is considered necessary. 

 
Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3. To approve the Environment and Transport Department’s Highways Capital 

Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme for the 2018/19 
financial year and to enable these to be published in April 2018.     
 

4. Both programmes have been prepared on the basis of current information available 
and may need to be revised to respond to changing circumstances and to ensure 
optimal use of resources throughout the financial year. 
 

Timetable for Decisions (including Scrutiny) 
 
5. This report will be considered by the Environment and Transport Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 6 April 2018 and its comments will be reported to the 
Cabinet. 
 
 

11 Agenda Item 8



 
 

6. Subject to the Cabinet’s approval, the Environment and Transport 2018/19 
Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme 
will be published in April 2018. 

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 
7. The 2017/18 Highways Capital Programme was approved by the Cabinet at its 

meeting in March 2017.  The Department’s key highways related plans and 
strategies have been taken into account when developing the 2018/19 Programme 
and the Highways and Transportation Work Programme. These include: 
 

 The Local Transport Plan (2011 to 2026) – adopted by the County Council 23 

March 2011; 
 

 The Highway Asset Management Policy and Highway Asset Management 
Strategy – approved by the Cabinet 23 June 2017; 
 

 The Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan (HIAMP) – approved by 
the Cabinet 15 September 2017; 
 

 The Network Management Plan (NMP) (2014–2026) – approved by the Cabinet 
1 April 2014. 

 
8. Consideration was also given to the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

2018/19 - 2021/22, and the County Council’s Strategic Plan 2018 – 2022, which 
were approved by the County Council on 21 February 2018 and 6 December 2017 
respectively. 

 
Resource Implications 
 
9. The actions outlined in the Highways and Transportation Work Programme will be 

funded from a variety of sources, including capital and revenue budgets and 
external sources of funding, such as the Government’s Single Local Growth Fund. 
Further detail on the financial context is given in Part B of this report below. 

 
10. The Highways and Transportation Work Programme is resource intensive, both in 

staff and financial terms.  Given this and the significant financial challenges that the 
County Council continues to face, there is little opportunity under the current 
resourcing situation for the Department to take on other commitments without 
affecting its ability to deliver the actions and schemes set out in the 2018/19 
Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme. 

 
11. The Director of Corporate Resources and the Director of Law and Governance 

have been consulted on this report. 
 
Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 
 

Officers to contact 
 
Ann Carruthers 
Director, Environment and Transport 
Tel: (0116) 305 7000 
Email: Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk 

13

mailto:Ann.Carruthers@leics.gov.uk


 
 

PART B 
 
Background 
 
Policy and Strategy 
 
12. The 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work 

Programme reflect the Environment and Transport Department’s current key 
highway service related plans and strategies as detailed in Part A above, whilst 
also taking account of the Council’s future priorities and the Leicester and 
Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership’s (LLEP) Strategic Economic Plan. 

 
13. These plans and strategies will remain in place for the foreseeable future.  

However, those developed and owned by the County Council will continue to be 
assessed and reviewed where appropriate to ensure that they remain fit for 
purpose.  It is likely therefore that elements of these documents and in some cases 
their entirety will be superseded.  Similarly the 2018/19 Highways Capital 
Programme and the Highways and Transportation Work Programme will be 
updated to reflect any such changes and the Cabinet’s approval will be sought 
where appropriate.  

 
Financial context 
 
14. The County Council is facing significant financial, demographic and service 

demand challenges.  It needs to deliver savings of £50m over the next four financial 
years (2018/19 to 2021/22), with £17.6m savings to be made in 2018/19.  This is a 
challenging task especially given that savings of £178m have already been 
delivered over the last eight years.  In addition, over the period of the MTFS, growth 
of £41.2m is required to meet demand and cost pressures with £14.3m required in 
2018/19. 
 

15. In the Environment and Transport Department, the revenue budget for 2018/19 is 
£63.3m, with £7.1m savings to be delivered over the next four years. 

 
16. The main four-year highway service related savings are: 
 

 a revised approach to highways maintenance and asset management; 

 a review of contracts; 

 service reviews; 

 a review of parking restrictions in town centres, effect on residents and impact of 
yellow lines. 

 
17. Reducing budgets and changes in national guidance have necessitated the change 

in the Council’s approach to highway asset management and maintenance.  
Through the revised approach, in 2018/19 a further £0.6m of ongoing savings need 
to be made by the Department on top of over £5m of ongoing savings made since 
2014/15.   
 

18. The framework for this change of approach is set out in the recently approved 
Asset Management Policy and Asset Management Strategy (AMP and AMS) and 
the Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan (HIAMP), which adopt a ‘risk 
based’ approach to asset management.  Essentially, this means the Council will 
need to look after its highway assets in a way that is more reflective of the relative 

14



 
 

risks to road users (i.e. particular risk of injury or worse) posed by its condition. 
 
19. Going forward, officers will be looking at how this is likely to affect the balance of 

future years’ spend across all asset management and maintenance activities.  This 
will include levels of funding for reactive maintenance versus preventative 
maintenance, and funding relating to the appearance of the assets (e.g. grass 
cutting beyond that required in respect of road safety) versus the condition of 
assets.  It is important that the appropriate balance is achieved to seek to maintain 
highway assets to the best overall condition possible and to minimise possible 
future legal liabilities on the County Council (e.g. arising from road user incidents) 
whilst working within ongoing budgetary pressures and responding to increasing 
travel demand arising from growth.  As a result, future asset management 
programmes could look very different. 

 
20. The Environment and Transport Department’s capital programme totals £114.5 m 

over the four years 2018-22.  This capital functioning comes from a number of 
sources such as various government competitive funding streams, the County 
Council’s capital budget and developer contributions.   The main areas of highway 
service related spend are listed below: 

 

 ensuring transport assets such as roads and footways are well managed 
(£48.9m) 
 

 Anstey Lane scheme and M1 Junction 23 scheme (£34.8m) 
 

 delivery of a programme of advanced design works to support future major 
transport schemes and bids to the Department for Transport (DfT) and Leicester 
and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership (LLEP) for funding (£5.2m) 
 

 investment in new vehicles to replace aged vehicles and reduce running costs 
(£6.8m) 
 

 junction, traffic management, signage, walking and cycling improvements in 
Hinckley Area Project Zone 4 (£5m) 
 

 planning and design works for Melton Mowbray Distributor Road to take it to 
shovel ready status (£4m) 
 

 completion of street lighting LED installation programme, central management 
system and de-illumination of street signs (£5m)*   
* In the 2017-21 MTFS, £5m of the funding for this work was programmed to be 
spent in 2018/19 although this has already been spent in 2017/18 (because the 
scheme was accelerated) along with the £9m that was allocated for that year.  
The £5m is shown in the 2018/19 programme to indicate the funds were 
originally allocated.   
     

 completion of Zouch Bridge replacement (£1.8m); 
 

 
 
 
 

15



 
 

2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work 
Programme 
 
21. The draft 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation 

Work Programme have been prepared using the best and most current information 
available and will be revised as necessary to ensure value for money and to 
respond to changing circumstances. 

 
22. The 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme (attached as Appendix A) contains a list 

of schemes for each of the highways programmes.   
 

23. The 2018/19 Highways and Transportation Work Programme (attached as 
Appendix B) contains actions that may take place over a number of years or which 
may not be implemented until beyond 2018/19.  

 
24. Key actions outlined in the 2018/19 Highways and Transportation Work Programme 

include: 
 

a) the continued development and delivery of schemes to support growth, 
including the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), Strategic Growth Plan 
(SGP) and Local Plans; 
 

b) maximising the benefits of partnership working, utilising external funding; 
 
c) making the best use of available funds and seeking to generate new 

income streams; 
 

d) delivery of the programme of section 106 (developer-funded) schemes; 
 
e) further development of a robust evidence base to support the delivery of 

current and future highways and transport infrastructure. 
 

Consultation 
 
25. Individual schemes and projects will continue to be subject to further consultation 

with local members and the public and reports will be presented to members as 
appropriate. 

 
26. Consultations on the various service reviews will take place at an appropriate point 

in their development. 
 

Background Papers 
 
Report to the Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 18 January 
2018 – Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 and minutes of that meeting 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044andMId=5326andVer=4 
 
Report to the County Council on 21 February 2018 - Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2018/19 -2021/22 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134andMId=5105andVer 
 
 
 

16

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=5326&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5105&Ver


 
 

Report to the Cabinet on 10 March 2017 - Environment and Transport Interim 
Commissioning Strategy 2017/18 Refresh 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4859  
 
Leicestershire County Council’s Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2017/1/9/Local_transport_plan.pdf 

 
Report to the Cabinet 23 June 2017 - Highway Asset Management Policy and Highway 
Asset Management Strategy 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135andMId=5120andVer=4 
 
Report to the Cabinet 15 September 2017 - Highways Infrastructure Asset Management 
Plan (HIAMP) 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135andMId=4863andVer=4 
 
Report to the Cabinet on 1 April 2014 - Network Management Plan 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135andMId=3989andVer=4 
 
Report to the County Council on 23 March 2011 – Final Draft Local Transport Plan (LTP3) 
Proposals 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3057  
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 
 
Appendix B – Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways and Transportation Work 
Programme 

 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
27. There are no equality or human rights implications arising directly from the 

recommendations in this report.  It has not been necessary to undertake a detailed 
equality assessment on the 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways 
and Transportation Work Programme. 

 
28. Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessments (EHRIA) will, however, be 

undertaken, as appropriate, during the review of any appropriate departmental 
strategies, prior to final decisions being made.  This will ensure that any new, 
proposed or significantly changed policies, practices, procedures, functions or 
services are assessed for equality and human rights implications. 

 
29. In addition, work undertaken on individual projects contained within the 2018/19 

Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme, 
such as MTFS service reviews, will include EHRIAs when appropriate. 

 
Environmental Implications 
 
30. No detailed environmental assessment has been undertaken on the 2018/19 

Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme. 
However, the County Council will assess the environmental implications of relevant 
new policies and schemes at appropriate points during their development. 

17

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4859
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2017/1/9/Local_transport_plan.pdf
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5120&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=4863&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3989&Ver=4
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=3057


 
 

 
 

Partnership Working and Associated Issues 
 

31. Working with key partners, such as the Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise 
Partnership (LLEP), Leicester City Council, district councils, Highways England, 
Network Rail, developers and Midlands Connect will be increasingly important in 
seeking to secure additional funding to deliver future transport measures and 
infrastructure. 

 
Risk Assessment 
 
32. The 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work 

Programme have been risk assessed as part of a wider risk assessment of the 
Environment and Transport Department’s business planning process. 

 
33. The delivery of both Programmes is supported by the Department’s business 

planning process and risk assessments will be undertaken for individual teams, 
schemes and initiatives as appropriate. 

 
 
 

18



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

Environment and Transport Department 

 

 

APPENDIX A 
19



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

Highways Programme 2018/19 

  
  

 Advanced Design   
 

 
 

  
 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Countywide A46 Expressway 
To investigate potential feasibility, benefits and 
impact of A46 expressway from SW to NE 
Leicestershire 

Cost Band D 

North West 
Leicestershire / 
Coalville 

Coalville Growth Area Strategy 
(A511/B591 Flying Horse 
Roundabout) 

Development of scheme to support growth of 
Coalville 

Cost Band C 

County Wide 
Emerging Priorities Fund (e.g. 
Challenge Fund Phase 2A, Single 
local growth Fund etc.) 

Fund to support any new initiatives which may 
arise from funding opportunities during the 
year 

Cost Band B 

County Wide 
Highway England Growth & Housing 
Fund 

Funding to enable future development of 
business case/proposals for M1 Junction 20 

Cost Band D 

County Wide Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) 
Subject to outcomes of initial Expression of 
Interest bids to Government, funding for 
development of outline business cases 

Cost Band D 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

Loughborough Growth Area 
Strategy (Loughborough Town 
Centre) 

To develop proposals to support future growth 
of Loughborough 

Cost Band D 

20



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Major Road Network (MRN) 
To investigate areas for potential work on the 
MRN where can be developed bid for potential 
funding  

Cost Band C 

Harborough / Market 
Harborough 

Market Harborough Transport Study 
Subject to outcome of LLEP development 
funding bid, develop proposals for the 
diversion of the A4304 from the town centre 

Cost Band D 

Melton / Melton 
Mowbray 

Melton Transport Strategy 
To identify transport solutions and develop a 
transport strategy for Melton Mowbray 

Cost Band D 

County Wide 
Microsimulation & Scheme 
Assessment Development 
Programme 

Introduction of Road traffic micro-simulation 
(computer models to understand traffic 
movement) within certain areas (Melton, 
Market Harborough, Coalville & 
Loughborough) to support project development 
and delivery where required 

Cost Band B 

County Wide Rail Strategy Works 

To continue to promote the priorities of 
Leicester & Leicestershire Railway Strategy 
including through working with Midlands 
Connect 

Cost Band D 

21



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide 
Strategic Growth / Transport Plan 
(Combined Authority Strategic 
Transport Plan) 

To continue to develop the Strategic Transport 
Plan (including supplying evidence base) to sit 
alongside the Leicester & Leicestershire 
Strategic Growth Plan 

Cost Band C 

County Wide 
Transport Barriers to Growth 
Programme 

To enable new proposals to be identified and 
developed as necessary in the light of 
emerging growth proposals (e.g. new Local 
Plans) 

Cost Band C 

County Wide 
Walking & Cycling Strategy (Local 
Cycling Walking Infrastructure 
Planning Strategy (LCWPIS) 

To develop a LCWPIS for Melton Cost Band D 

  
  

 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £1,330,000 

  
  

 

22



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

Surface Dressing & Preventative Maintenance (Carriageway Schemes) 
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide 
Surface Dress Pre-Patch 
(Accelerated Programme) 

Surface Dressing Pre-Patching Cost Band B 

Blaby / Enderby Junction 21 Approach A5460 Strengthen/Resurface  Cost Band C 

Melton - Harborough 
/ Somerby – Owston 

Newbold Lane Re-tread process Cost Band C 

Blaby / Blaby Winchester Avenue Strengthen/Resurface  Cost Band D 

Charnwood / Barrow 
upon Soar 

Melton Road Major Patching Cost Band D 

Charnwood / 
Thurmaston & 
Syston 

Syston Western Bypass A607 Major Patching Cost Band C 

Blaby / Whetstone Lutterworth Road A426 Major Patching Cost Band D 

Blaby / Stoney 
Stanton 

Hinckley Road Major Patching Cost Band C 

23



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Harborough / Market 
Harborough 

Welland Park Road Major Patching Cost Band D 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

Belton Road (West Extension) Major Patching Cost Band D 

Blaby / Leicester 
Forest East 

Hinckley Road A47 Resurface  Cost Band D 

Melton / Easthorpe Castle View Road Retread Cost Band D 

Melton / Long 
Clawson 

Melton Road Major Patching Cost Band D 

Oadby & Wigston / 
Oadby 

Ridge Way Major Patching Cost Band D 

Oadby & Wigston / 
Oadby 

Howdon Road Major Patching Cost Band D 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Markfield 

Shaw Lane A511 (Flying Horse 
Roundabout) 

Strengthen/Resurface  Cost Band A 

Various - County 
Wide 

Contingency Fund  Unforeseen Schemes Cost Band C 

24



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Surface Dressing Programme Surface Dressing (County Wide) Cost Band A 

Blaby  - 103,667 m2  - Surface Dressing (Blaby)   

Charnwood  - 170,980 m2  - Surface Dressing (Charnwood)   

Harborough  - 164,353 m2  - Surface Dressing (Harborough)   

Hinckley & Bosworth  - 100,174 m2  - Surface Dressing (H&B)   

Melton  - 96,053 m2  - Surface Dressing (Melton)   

North West Leics  - 75,539 m2  - Surface Dressing (NWL)   

Oadby & Wigston  - 17,758 m2  - Surface Dressing (O&W)   

County Wide Surface Dressing Pre-Patching Surface Dressing Pre-Patching Cost Band A 

County Wide Micro-Asphalt Programme Micro-Asphalt  Cost Band C 

County Wide Water Retexturing Programme Water Retexturing  Cost Band C 

County Wide Joint Sealing Programme Joint Sealing  Cost Band C 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £4,628,000 

25



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

Restorative (Patching Works)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Various Patching Cost Band A 

Various - County 
Wide 

Planned Carriageway Patching Patching Cost Band A 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £5,175,000 

Structures (Bridges)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

2017/18 Commitments 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Markfield 

A50 Markfield Bridge Bearings Cost Band A 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Bilstone 

Gibbet Lane Bridge Replacement Cost Band C 

26



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Various General Bridge Maintenance Schemes Cost Band D 

2018/19 Programme 

Blaby / Glen Parva Blaby Bridge (A426) Concrete Repairs Cost Band C 

Charnwood / Quorn  Barrow Road Brickwork Repairs Cost Band D 

NWL / Whitwick City of Three Waters Re-decking & Parapet Replacement Cost Band C 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Orton on the Hill 

Sheepy Lane Bridge Replacement Cost Band C 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

Shakespeare Street Brickwork Repairs Cost Band D 

Harborough / 
Lubenham 

Scoborough Road Footbridge Replacement Cost Band D 

County Wide Various Parapet Painting Cost Band D 

County Wide Various Minor Bridge Maintenance Schemes Cost Band C 

Asset Management 

County Wide Various Bridge Inspections Bridge Inspections - Programme Cost Band C 

27



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Bridge Assessments  Analysis & Testing Cost Band C 

County Wide Future Scheme Development Advance Design Works for Future Schemes Cost Band D 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £1,960,000 

  
  

 Street Lighting  
 

  
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide 
Bulk Column Replacement 
Programme  

Bulk Column Replacement 

Cost Band B  
County Wide Structural Testing Programme  - Structural Testing 

County Wide Electrical Testing Programme   - Electrical Testing 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £650,000 

 

28



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

Traffic Signal Renewal    
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Various  Design & Supervision Fees Cost Band D 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

Belton Road/Jubilee Drive Junction Renewal Cost Band D 

Harborough / 
Dunton Basset 

A4626/Coopers Lane Junction Renewal Cost Band D 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

A6/Bishop Meadow Junction Renewal Cost Band C 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Groby 

A50 Lena Drive Junction Renewal Cost Band D 

NWL / Ashby de la 
Zouch 

Market Street Crossing Renewal Cost Band D 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Hinckley 

Castle Street Crossing Renewal Cost Band D 

Harborough / 
Kibworth 

Warwick Road Investigation Cost Band D 

Blaby / Braunstone A5460/A563 Slip (Osiers Bottom) Junction Renewal Cost Band D 

Blaby / Braunstone Osiers Bridge (top) Junction Renewal Cost Band C 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £200,000 

  
  

 

29



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

Flood Risk Management (Flood Alleviation)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

NWL Drome Close Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Moira Bath Lane  Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Long Clawson Sand Pit Lane Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Rothley Wellsic Lane Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Swithland Main Street Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Whitwick Grace Dieu Road Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band C 

NWL Breedon Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band C 

Loughborough Windsor Road Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Billesdon Brook Lane  Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Mkt. Harborough Great Easton Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

SWMP Market Harborough Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band D 

Burbage Sketchley Road  Flood Alleviation Scheme Cost Band C 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £390,000 

  
  

 

30



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

Safety Barriers (Capital Schemes & Design)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Safety Barriers - various Renewals Cost Band C 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £150,000 

  
  

 Public Rights of Way (Capital Schemes & Design)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Public Rights of Way - various Schemes Cost Band D 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £50,000 

  
  

 

31



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

Various Capital Schemes & Design   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide Traffic Counter Renewals Various Schemes Cost Band D 

County Wide Conditional Surveys Various Schemes Cost Band D 

County Wide 
Design Service Fees for early 
development of any scheme that 
may arise and needs designing 

Various Schemes Cost Band B 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £357,000 

  
  

 Hinckley Hub 
 

  
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Hinckley & Bosworth 
/ Hinckley 

Hinckley Hub - Hawley Road Junction Scheme Cost Band A 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £1,440,000 

32



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

  
  

 

  
  

 Croft Office Block Improvements   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Blaby / Croft Croft Depot - Office Block  Improvements Cost Band B 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £410,000 

  
  

 

  
  

 Safety Schemes  
 

  
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

 Various- As Below:- Safety Schemes - As Below:- Schemes 

Cost Band B 

-Blaby / Blaby 
 - Foxhunter Roundabout – B4114 St 
Johns – B582 Blaby Road 

 - Safety Scheme 

-Oadby & Wigston / 
Wigston 

 -  A5199 Leicester Road junction with 
Carlton Drive 

 - Safety Scheme 

-Charnwood / 
Ulverscroft 

 -  C3208 Shepshed Road junction with 
Beacon Road 

 - Safety Scheme 

33



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Oadby & Wigston / 
Wigston 

 -  B5366 Saffron Road junction with 
Gloucester Crescent 

 - Safety Scheme 

As Above:- 
Cost Band B 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

 -  A6 Loughborough Road junction with 
Beeches Road 

 - Safety Scheme 

Blaby / Glen Parva 
 -  A426 Leicester Road junction with 
Little Glen Road 

 - Safety Scheme 

Charnwood / 
Loughborough 

 -  A6 Leicester Road junction with 
Shelthorpe Road 

 - Safety Scheme 

County Wide  - Rural 50’s  - Safety Scheme 

County Wide 
 -Speed Awareness Pilot (Average 
Speed Cameras) 

 -Safety Scheme 

 
 

  
 

  
Total Allocation £500,000 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

  
  

 

34



Appendix A – 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme 

 

Highway Maintenance - IT Renewals   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

County Wide 
Highway Maintenance - IT Various 
Renewals 

Schemes Cost Band C 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £80,000 

  
  

 New Starts - Strategic Economic Plan (SEP)   
 

  
  

 

District / Parish Location / Scheme Name Intervention / Work / Treatment Description 

Cost Band 
A = Over £1 Million 
B = £200k- £1Million 

C = £50k to £200k 
D = Below £50k 

Charnwood Anstey Lane A46 Scheme Cost Band A 

 
M1 Junction 23 Scheme Cost Band A 

NWL Marlborough Square  Scheme Funded by NWLDC* 

  
  

 

  
Total Allocation £10,000,000 

 

*Marlborough Square Scheme will be funded by NWLDC (Note: this is a change to what was agreed at County Council.) 

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

Improved satisfaction with 
the transport system and 
waste and environmental 
services amongst both 
users and residents 

Continue to deliver our 
Transformation 
Programme & review the 
commissioning approach 
to key service areas in 
order to deliver MTFS 
Savings 

 Conduct a comprehensive review of Network Management 
approach and procedures in line with other key strategies such 
as HIAMP and emerging actions and projects across the 
department,  

31/12/2018 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Develop a Passenger Transport Policy and Strategy (PTPS), 
taking account of any opportunities emerging from the Bus 
Services Act 2017. 

30/06/2019 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Develop a strategy to inform the Authority’s approach to the 
implementation of on-street parking charging 

30/04/2020 Transport Operations 

 Develop and support the implementation in practice of the 
Highway Asset Management Policy and Highway Asset 
Management Strategy (the 'risk based' approach) in line with 
national guidance and best practice.  

Oct- 18 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Take forward outcomes of the Special Education Needs (SEN) 
and Social Care (SC) review 

30/09/2019 Transport Operations 

 To provide non-statutory pre-application advice to applicants 
in line with the Council's policy  

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Undertake a review of design guide for new development Mar-19 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Undertake specific project reviews in order to assess the 
feasibility of generating income to support service delivery 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Continue to develop a 
robust evidence base to 
support the delivery of 
the current and future 
commissioning strategies 

 Collection, analysis and provision of transport data and 
intelligence to support economy and growth, infrastructure 
development and delivery, both within the Department and to 
our partners. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Continue development of Micro-Simulation models for the 
county’s principal market towns in order to assess the impact 
of proposed developments and ensure that those impacts are 
suitably mitigated 

2019/2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Continue to develop, use and maintain a suite of analytical 
tools, develop and maintain a robust evidence base to 
underpin the departments commissioning strategy and 
decision making 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Provision of data collection services to internal and external 
clients, including contracted services to Warwickshire County 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
37



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

Council, Leicester City Council and the Leicester, Leicestershire 
and Rutland Road Safety Partnership (LLRRSP). 

Provide systems & 
processes to deliver high 
quality services to 
customers  

 18/19 - To ensure the appropriate processes and systems are in 
place to support operational delivery, transformation and 
secure external funding – Under the new code of practice 
“Well-managed Highway Infrastructure” 

Oct-18 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Provision of responses to Property Search (CON29) enquiries 
including creation, maintenance and publication of source 
information to comply with the Authority's duties under the 
Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) 2004. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Our transport system and 
assets are effectively 
managed and well 
maintained. 

Continue to manage and 
maintain our highway 
assets  

 18/19 - Deliver and develop a maintenance programme in line 
with Well-managed highways, including supporting the ongoing 
commissioning process.  

2019/2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Coordinating assessments for highway land asset disposal 
requests, including managing associated procedures to stop up, 
divert, or exchange highway land 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Deliver a minor traffic and parking management improvement 
programme to support wider priorities including managing the 
flow  
of traffic to maintain access and safety in growth areas 

31/03/2019 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Development of the Area Traffic Control (ATC) Service Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Efficient delivery of TRO's - reductions in timescales and cost Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Management of the UK Pavement Management System 
(UKPMS) including coordination of the network condition 
assessments, and provision of asset condition data to inform 
the Authority's highway maintenance strategy and national 
performance indicators. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Meet statutory requirements to produce a Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan. 

2019/2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Support the department's QMS/ISO 9001 accreditation & ISO 
55000 accreditations 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Support the development of consistent and up to date 
operating procedures and standards for traffic management, 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

38



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

traffic signals and accident investigation 

 Put in place effective processes to ensure future works  
programmes are developed and effectively delivered 

31/3/2019 Highways 
Commissioning 

 To define and develop operating procedures to support the 
new HIAMP approach 

Oct-18 Highways Delivery 

Effective and integrated 
public and community 
transport provision, 
including targeted and 
innovative travel solutions 
which meet the essential 
transport needs of 
Leicestershire residents 

Continue to manage the 
subsidised public 
transport network 
meeting the essential 
needs of the customer 

 Reacting to changes in the commercial network. Providing 
policy decisions on provision to mitigate impact of roadworks 
on public transport. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Congestion is managed 
through more consistent, 
predictable and reliable 
journey times for the 
movement of people and 
goods 

Engage with regional & 
national partners to 
influence 
policies/programmes/pro
posals which will have an 
impact on the County  

 Actively influence, engage and work with Regional and National 
bodies to seek to pursue Leicester and Leicestershire’s 
interests through the development of strategic transport 
projects to support growth and unlock economic potential, 
including: Department for Transport, Highways England, 
Network Rail, Midlands Connect and Transport for the East 
Midlands   

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Respond to consultations conducted by national and regional 
bodies 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To embed partnering principles and construction best practise 
in all its work and throughout the supply chains 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To establish, implement and develop a continuous 
improvement model for highway term contracts to achieve 
convergence to best practise 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To manage the work of the Midlands Highway Alliance, 
ensuring it remains an exemplar for other alliances ,  

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To promote and publicise the work of the Midlands Highway 
Alliance 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Support & deliver key 
infrastructure 
improvements to enable 
planned growth & meet 

 Continue to work with district councils and other parties to 
deliver new development and associated infrastructure 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Continue to work with other statutory authorities (such as local 
authorities, adjacent highway authorities, Highways England 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

39



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

economic needs within 
the County 

and rail network providers) 

 Continue to work with the Leicester and Leicestershire 
Enterprise Partnership, district councils and other bodies 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Deliver a programme of s.106 developer funded improvements Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Deliver bus mitigation measures in Loughborough Town Centre 31/03/2019 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Ensure that congestion is minimised through effective parking 
management that is fiscally neutral to the authority 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Overseeing development and delivery of the County Councils 
own transport projects  

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Prepare/support development of national, regional and local 
funding bids (including Expressions of Interest) 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Provide support to enable the authority's engagement with 
HS2 Ltd, Midlands, East Midlands Councils and other bodies as 
relevant to ensure that proposals for HS2 Phase 2b (including 
at and around the Toton Hub Station) are developed such that 
the economic benefits of the project to Leicester and 
Leicestershire are maximised and disbenefits are minimised   

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Provide transport policy support for the development and 
implementation of specific development sites/proposals  

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Support Midland Engine and successful delivery of the 
Midlands Connect Strategy, including to support Midlands 
Connect Study work and development of business cases for 
funding from Government, including A46 Expressway, A5 
Expressway and Le- Nuckle (improved EM and WM rail service) 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To continue to identify and develop an evidence based pipeline 
of transport projects, for future growth deals and other funding 
opportunities (evidence includes study work and development 
of transport strategies) 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Use of new & improved technology to reduce congestion and 
delays along strategic corridors  

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Work towards the delivery of the Zouch Bridge replacement, 
including completion of the legal orders process 

31/05/2021 Highways Delivery 

 Work with partners to support the successful delivery of joint Ongoing Highways 

40



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

transport projects  Commissioning 

 Continue to work with district councils and other parties to 
plan for and support the future population and economic 
needs of Leicester and Leicestershire (including study 
work/development of evidence as necessary) 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Work with districts 
councils & other parties 
to plan for & support the 
future population & 
economic needs of 
Leicester & Leicestershire 
across all transport 
modes   

 Develop a Leicester & Leicestershire Strategic Transport Plan to 
sit alongside and support the Strategic Growth Plan and Local 
Industrial Strategy 

31/12/2018 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Overseeing technical approval, and the adoption process of 
development related infrastructure 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To provide statutory support and advice to planning applicants 
and local planning authorities. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To provide transport policy support to other parts of the 
department and authority and to external partners as 
necessary. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 To work closely with each Local Planning Authority to ensure 
co-ordination of important infrastructure lists, and to ensure 
contributions are set at a level which allows highway and other 
strategic infrastructure to be provided. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Working in partnership with Leicester City Council deliver £3m 
Choose How You Move programme up March 2020 to open up 
opportunities for travel to employment, education and 
training. 

March 2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Maintain the public transport infrastructure - Shelters, flag 
poles, flags etc. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

More people walk, cycle 
and use public transport as 
part of their daily journeys, 
including to access key 
services 

Deliver infrastructure, 
where appropriate, to 
support sustainable 
travel 

 Continue to work with Leicester City Council and commercial 
local bus operators to improve travel by bus and enhance 
viability of services 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Work across the Council 
& with other partners to 
promote sustainable 
travel & identify 
opportunities to bid for 
external funding where 

 Review delivery models for a future countrywide model 
including Wheels to Work 

31/03/2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Design area maintenance programmes of public rights of way 
maintenance in line with statutory requirements 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

41



Appendix B – 2018/19 Highways & Transportation Work Programme 

 

 

Departmental Outcome Head of Service Objective Head of Service Action / Team Objective Date Range Service Area 

available 

The natural environment 
can be accessed easily and 
efficiently particularly by 
bike or on foot  

Work with developers & 
partners to promote the 
use of & maintain the 
Public Rights of Way 
Network 

 Undertake regular reactive maintenance programmes of public 
rights of way maintenance in line with statutory requirements 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Develop and deliver a programme of flood alleviation schemes 
during 2018/19 to improve resilience of Leicestershire's 
businesses and reduce the number of properties at risk from 
flood risk. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

Minimise the 
environmental impact of 
the Council’s activities and 
improve resilience to 
climate change 

Continue to implement 
outcomes from the Flood 
Risk Management 
Strategy 

 Review the 2015 Flood Risk Management Strategy by the end 
of 2018/19 

31/03/2019 Highways 
Commissioning 

 Undertake the Lead Local Flood Authority statutory duties Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Address Highway and Road Safety Issues as per agreed 
procedure 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

The number of road 
casualties is reduced 

Address road safety 
issues as identified 

 Consider future schemes and prepare a bid (based on an 
evidenced based approach) to DfT for Safer Roads Funding 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Deliver programme of road safety education initiatives - SAGE, 
JRSO, and PDD. Delivery of Driver Education Workshop courses. 
Delivery of SCP service. Supporting the LLRSP and delivery of 
LLRSP programme of initiatives. Delivery of programme of 
Bikeability training. 

Ongoing Highways 
Commissioning 

 Develop and implement a pilot project considering the wider 
use of safety cameras to address community concerns about 
road safety 

31/05/2020 Highways 
Commissioning 

    

 

42


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 1 March 2018.
	8 Environment and Transport 2018/19 Highways Capital Programme and Highways and Transportation Work Programme.
	Appendix A  - 2018-19 Highways Capital Programme
	Appendix B - 2018-19 Highways Transportation Work Programme


